AGENCY: United States International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Termination of five-year reviews.

SUMMARY: On July 6, 1998, the Department of Commerce and the Commission began the subject five-year reviews to determine whether revocation of the existing antidumping duty orders would be likely to lead to continuation or recurrence of dumping and material injury to a domestic industry (63 FR 36389). On October 5, 1998, the Department of Commerce notified the Commission that it was revoking the orders in the subject reviews because no domestic interested party responded to its notice of initiation by the applicable deadline (63 FR 54441, October 9, 1998). Accordingly, pursuant to section 207.69 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 CFR § 207.69), the subject reviews are terminated.

EFFECTIVE DATE: October 5, 1998.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Vera Libeau (202-205-3176), Office of Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Washington, DC 20436. Hearingimpaired individuals are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on 202-205–1810. Persons with mobility impairments who will need special assistance in gaining access to the Commission should contact the Office of the Secretary at 202-205-2000. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server (http:// www.usitc.gov).

Authority: These reviews are being terminated under authority of title VII of the Tariff Act of 1930; this notice is published pursuant to section 207.69 of the Commission's rules (19 CFR 207.69).

Issued: October 9, 1998. By order of the Commission.

Donna R. Koehnke,

Secretary.

[FR Doc. 98–27684 Filed 10–14–98; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Notice of Lodging of Consent Decrees Under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act; Akzo Coatings, Inc., et al.

Notice is hereby given that on September 30, 1998 three proposed Consent Decrees ("Decrees") in *United* States v. Akzo Coatings, Inc., et al, Civil Action No. 98–WM–2109, were lodged with the United States District Court for the District of Colorado. The United States filed this action pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, as amended ("CERCLA"), 42 U.S.C. 9601, et seq., to recover the past response costs incurred at or in connection with the Chemical Handling Site in Jefferson County, Colorado.

The proposed Consent Decrees resolve claims against: Akzo Nobel Coatings, Inc., Alaska Railroad Corporation, Allied Barrel & Container, Inc., Alumax Mill Products, Inc., Eaton Corporation, Elamex S.A. De C.V., Honeywell, Inc., Kawneer Company, Inc., Landstar Ligon, Inc., Louisiana-Pacific Corporation, Microsemi Corporation—Colorado, No-Putts, Inc. Pel-Freez Rabbit Meat, Inc., Rock-Tenn Company, Rock-Tenn Company of Arkansas, Todd Shipyards Corporation, Western Forge Corporation, and Weyerhaeuser Company, Inc. This proposed Consent Decrees recover response costs of \$1,542,848.91. The Decrees also settle potential claims against the United States at the Site.

The Department of Justice will receive for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of this publication comments relating to the Decrees. Comments should be addressed to the Assistant Attorney General of the Environment and Natural Resources Division, Department of Justice, Washington, DC 20530, and should refer, to *United States* v. *Akzo Coatings, Inc., et al*, Civil Action No. 98–WM–2109, and D.J. Ref. #90–7–1–666/1.

The Decrees may be examined at the United States Department of Justice, **Environment and Natural Resources** Division, Denver Field Office, 999 18th Street, North Tower Suite 945, Denver, Colorado, 80202 and the U.S. EPA Region VIII, 999 18th Street, Superfund Records Center, Suite 500, Denver, CO 80202, and at the Consent Decree Library, 1120 G Street, N.W., 3rd Floor, Washington, DC 20005, (202) 624-0892. A copy of the Decrees may be obtained in person or by mail from the Consent Decree Library, 1120 G Street, NW., 3rd Floor, Washington, DC 20005. In requesting a copy, please enclose a check in the amount of \$18.75 for the Decrees (25 cents per page reproduction cost) payable to the Consent Decree Library.

Walker B. Smith,

Deputy Chief, Environmental Enforcement Section, Environment and Natural Resources Division.

[FR Doc. 98-27692 Filed 10-14-98; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4410-15-M

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree Pursuant to the Clean Air Act; Calaveras Cement Co.

In accordance with Departmental policy, 28 CFR 50.7, notice is hereby given that a proposed consent decree in *United States* v. *Calaveras Cement Company*, No. CIVF–97–5418–OWW, was lodged on October 1, 1998 with the United States District Court for Eastern District of California.

The consent decree settles claims for civil penalties and injunctive relief against Calaveras Cement Company ("Calaveras") under the Clean Air Act. The complaint alleges: (1) that Calaveras violated the Prevention of Significant Deterioration ("PSD") regulations, 40 CFR 52.21, as incorporated in the applicable State Implementation Plan ("SIP"), by failing to undergo PSD review prior to obtaining an Authority to Construct permit for a "major modification" of its facility, (2) that, in the alternative, Calaveras violated the emissions limits for nitrogen oxides ("NO_X") in an permit issued by the Kern County Air Pollution Control District for a minor modification, (3) that Calaveras violated Subpart F of the New Source Performance Standards ("NSPS"), 40 CFR Part 60, by failing to submit timely continuous emissions monitoring ("CEM") data for emissions from its kiln and clinker cooler and by exceeding the emissions limits for particulate matter on three occasions, and (4) that Calaveras violated Subpart Y (as well as Subpart A) of the NSPS, 40 C.F.R. Part 60, by failing to conduct a timely performance test on its coal preparation plant.

Pursuant to the consent decree Calaveras will pay a civil penalty of \$222,000 and will operate under interim emission limits set forth in the consent decree until Calaveras' application for a federally approved permit has been resolved.

The Department of Justice will receive, for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of this publication, comments relating to the proposed consent decree. Comments should be addressed to the Assistant Attorney General for the Environment and

Natural Resources Division, Department of Justice, Washington, D.C. 20530, and should refer to *United States* v. *Calaveras Cement Company*, DOJ Ref. #90–5–2–1920.

The proposed consent decree may be examined at the office of the United States Attorney, for the Eastern District of California, 1130 "O" Street, Room 3654, Fresno, CA 93721 (209) 498-7272; the Region IX Office of the Environmental Protection Agency, 75 Hawthorne Street, San Francisco, CA; and at the Consent Decree Library, 1120 G Street, N.W., 3rd Floor, Washington, D.C. 20005, (202) 624-0892. A copy of the proposed consent decree may be obtained in person or by mail from the Consent Decree Library, 1120 G Street, N.W., 3rd Floor, Washington, D.C. 20005. In requesting a copy please refer to the referenced case and enclose a check in the amount of \$5.75 (25 cents per page reproduction costs), payable to the Consent Decree Library.

Joel Gross,

Chief, Environmental Enforcement Section, Environmental and Natural Resources Division.

[FR Doc. 98–27690 Filed 10–14–98; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4410–15–M

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree Pursuant to the Clean Water Act; ConAgra, Inc.

In accordance with Departmental policy, 28 C.F.R. 50.7, notice is hereby given that a proposed consent decree in United States v. ConAgra, Inc., Civil Action No. CIV96-0134-S-LMB, was lodged on October 1, 1998 with United States District Court for the District of Idaho. The United States of America ("United States"), on behalf of the United States Environmental Protection Agency, has filed a civil Amended Complaint pursuant to Section 309 (b) and (d) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (the "CWA" or the "Act"), 33 U.S.C. 1319 (b) and (d), and a January 26, 1998 Notice of Corrections to the Amended Complaint. In the Amended Complaint modified by a January 26, 1998 Notice of Corrections, the United States alleges that the Defendant, ConAgra, Inc., violated the Clean Water Act and the terms and conditions of National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permits at the Armour Fresh Meats Company of Nampa, Idaho, beef slaughterhouse and concentrated animal feeding operation located at Railroad Road and Amity, Nampa, Idaho ("Facility").

The proposed consent decree provides that the Defendant shall pay to the United States \$1,000,000 in civil penalties. In addition, the proposed consent decree requires ConAgra to cease all land application of wastes at the Facility for so long as a CAFO and/ or slaughterhouse is operated at the Facility, close its existing wastewater treatment ponds and construct a new wastewater treatment pond(s), and implement a Supplemental Environmental Project, which requires ConAgra to remove cattle from its CAFO and cease all use of its CAFO to reduce the potential sources of pollutants to the surface waters.

The proposed consent decree settles all civil claims against ConAgra for violations of the CWA at ConAgra's Facility alleged in the Amended Complaint, as modified by the January 26, 1998 Notice of Corrections, that occurred prior to the date of lodging of this Consent Decree, including alleged violations of effluent limitations in ConAgra's NPDES permits, violations of monitoring, reporting and records requirements in ConAgra's NPDES permits, and unauthorized discharges of pollutants to surface waters via french drains, soils and hydrologicallyconnected groundwater.

The Department of Justice will receive, for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of this publication, comments relating to the proposed consent decree. Comments should be addressed to the Assistant Attorney General for the Environment and Natural Resources Division, Department of Justice, Washington, D.C. 20530, and should refer to *United States* v. *ConAgra, Inc.*, DOJ Ref. 90–5–1–1–4284.

The proposed consent decree can be examined at the Office of the United States Attorney, District of Idaho, 877 West Main, Suite 201, Boise, Idaho 83707; the Region 10, Idaho Office of the Environmental Protection Agency, 1435 N. Orchard Street, Boise, Idaho 83706; and at the Consent Decree Library, 1120 G Street, N.W., 3rd Floor, Washington, D.C. 20005, (202) 624-0892. A copy of the proposed consent decree may be obtained in person or by mail from the Consent Decree Library, 1120 G Street, N.W., 3rd Floor, Washington, D.C. 20005. In requesting a copy, please refer to the referenced case and enclose a check in the amount of \$10.50 (25 cents per page reproduction

costs) payable to the Consent Decree Library.

Joel Gross,

Chief, Environmental Enforcement Section, Environment and Natural Resources Division. [FR Doc. 98–27695 Filed 10–13–98; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4410–15–M

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree Pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act and Resource Conservation and Recovery Act; Lake Geneva Associates, et al.

In accordance with Departmental policy, 28 C.F.R. § 50.7, notice is hereby given that on September 30, 1998 a proposed Consent Decree in *United States* v. *Lake Geneva Associates, et al.*, Civil Action No. 98–C–0972, was lodged with the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Wisconsin.

The Consent Decree resolves certain claims of the United States against Lake Geneva Associates, Playboy Enterprises, and Marcus Geneva, Inc., under Sections 107(a) and 113(g)(2) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. 9607(a) and 9613(g)(2), at the former Southern Lakes Trap Skeet Club site ("the Site") near Lake Geneva in Walworth County, Wisconsin. The defendants have been named as either a former owner during the disposal of hazardous substances at, or the current owner of, the Site.

The settlement requires the settling defendants to make payment of \$925,000 for past response costs incurred by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency in connection with the Site and of \$75,000 on behalf of the Department of the Interior and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service for natural resource damages. The Consent Decree includes a covenant not to sue by the United States under Sections 106 and 107(a) of CERCLA and Section 7003 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act ("RCRA"), 42 U.S.C. 6973, for: (1) Response costs and actions associated with the EPA removal action at the Site; (2) natural resource damages resulting from shooting activities at or from the Site; and, (3) any and all claims by the United States for violations of the requirements of an EPA administrative order, Docket No. V-W-94-C.

The Department of Justice will receive, for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of this publication, comments relating to the proposed Consent Decree. Comments should be addressed to the Assistant Attorney General for the Environment and Natural Resources Division, United